
CITY OF FRANKLIN 
PLAN COMMISSION MEETING* 

FRANKLIN CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
9229 W. LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN 

AGENDA 
THURSDAY, JULY 8, 2021, 7:00 P.M. 

               
The YouTube channel “City of Franklin WI” will be live streaming the Plan Commission 

meeting so that the public will be able to watch and listen to the meeting.  
https://www.youtube.com/c/CityofFranklinWIGov.   

 
 

A.   Call to Order and Roll Call 
 

B.  Approval of Minutes 
 

 1. Approval of regular meeting of June 17, 2021. 
 

C. Public Hearing Business Matters (action may be taken on all matters following  
                                                                      the respective Public Hearing thereon) 

 
1. JAMES A. ROGOSIENSKI AND SANDRA D. ROGOSIENSKI SINGLE-FAMILY 

RESIDENCE DETACHED GARAGE EXPANSION [recommendation to Board of 
Zoning and Building Appeals].  Application by James A. Rogosienski and Sandra D. 
Rogosienski for an Area Exception from Section 15-3.0801C.1. of the Unified 
Development Ordinance to allow for an 864 square foot accessory structure, exceeding 
the 720 square feet maximum size by 20%, for property located at 3800 West Acre 
Avenue [an existing dwelling totaling 1100 square feet and two existing detached 
accessory buildings are currently on the property, the first building is a detached 24 foot 
by 24 foot frame garage totaling 576 square feet and the second building is a detached 12 
foot by 20 foot frame accessory building totaling 240 square feet-proposal is to remove 
the 12 foot by 20 foot accessory building to provide clearance to expand the existing 24 
foot by 24 foot garage to 24 feet by 36 feet for a total of 864 square feet], property zoned 
R-3 Suburban/Estate Single-Family Residence District; Tax Key No. 833-0065-000.  A 
PUBLIC HEARING IS SCHEDULED FOR THIS MEETING UPON THIS 
MATTER. 

 
D. Business Matters (no Public Hearing is required upon the following matters; action may be   
                                           taken on all matters) 
 

1. DETACHED ACCESSORY BUILDING ADDITION TO A CHILD CARE 
CENTER.  Site Plan Amendment application by Christopher W. Colton, 
President of Ingenious Inc., for the addition of an approximately 880 square foot 
(40 feet by 22 feet) detached accessory building to Ingenious Inc, a child care 
facility (proposed building would be located east of the existing parking lot and  

 would be used for storage), property zoned B-3 Community Business District,  

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityofFranklinWIGov


Franklin Plan Commission Agenda 
7/8/21 
Page 2 

 
 located at 7260 South 76th Street; Tax Key No. 756-9993-011.  
 
2. BEAR DEVELOPMENT, LLC RECONFIGURATION OF THREE LOTS 

FOR POTENTIAL FUTURE CONDOMINIUM DEVELOPMENT.  
Certified Survey Map application by Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear 
Development, LLC (Boomtown, LLC, property owner), to reconfigure 3 
properties (Tax Key No. 891-9993-000, 8.58 acres, 12000 West Loomis Road, 
with access to Ryan Road; Tax Key No. 891-9996-000, 6.68 acres, generally 
between 12000 and 12204 West Loomis Road and Tax Key No. 891-9997-000, 
3.54 acres, 12204 West Loomis Road) to create 2 lots as follows:  Lot 1 with 
15.06 acres north of Loomis Road and access to Ryan Road, and Lot 2 with 0.91 
acres south of Loomis Road and access to West Loomis Court [a Concept Review 
was presented before the Common Council on April 5, 2021, for the “Ryan Road 
Duplexes”, a two-family residential condominium development, with 26 units in 
13 two-family attached dwellings on the area designated as Lot 1 in this Certified 
Survey Map]; properties located at 12000 West Loomis Road and 12204 West 
Loomis Road, zoned R-8 Multiple-Family Residence District and C-1 
Conservancy District.   

 
3. SIGN CODE INTERIM AMENDMENTS, CITY-WIDE (REVIEW OF STAFF’S 

PROPOSALS FOR MINOR AMENDMENTS TO CHAPTER 210 OF THE 
MUNICIPAL CODE). 

 
E. Adjournment 

 
*Supporting documentation and details of these agenda items are available at City hall during normal business hours. 
 
**Notice is given that a majority of the Common Council may attend this meeting to gather information about an agenda item over which they have 
decision-making responsibility.  This may constitute a meeting of the Common Council per State ex rel. Badke v. Greendale Village Board, even though the 
Common Council will not take formal action at this meeting. 
 
[Note: Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services.  For additional 
information, contact the City Clerk’s office at (414) 425-7500.] 
 
REMINDERS: 
Next Regular Plan Commission Meeting: July 22, 2021  



Page 1                Plan Commission – Minutes 

                              June 17, 2021  

 City of Franklin unapproved  

 Plan Commission Meeting                            

June 17, 2021 

Minutes 

 

A. Call to Order and Roll Call Mayor Steve Olson called the June 17, 2021, regular Plan 

Commission meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. in the Council 

Chambers at Franklin City Hall, 9229 West Loomis Road, 

Franklin, Wisconsin.  

 

Present were Mayor Steve Olson, Commissioners Adam 

Burckhardt and Patricia Hogan,  City Engineer Glen Morrow 

and Alderman Mark Dandrea. Absent were Commissioners 

Kevin Haley and Patrick . Also present were City Attorney 

Jesse Wesolowski, Planning Manager Heath Eddy and 

Principal Planner Régulo Martínez-Montilva.  

 

B. Approval of Minutes 

 

 

1. Regular Meeting of June 3, 2021 

 

 

 

 

C. Public Hearing Business Matters 

 

1.     None. 
 

 

D. Business Matters 

 

1.     TARGET STORE T-2388 

FRANKLIN PLACEMENT OF 

SHIPPING CONTAINERS IN 

STORE PARKING LOT. Temporary 

Use application by Target 

Corporation (Store T-2388 Franklin) to 

allow for the placement of 40-50 

shipping containers on the west side of 

the Target Store parking lot, for storage 

use during the remodel of the Target 

store, from July 12, 2021 to November 

5, 2021, property located at 7800 South 

Lovers Lane Road, zoned CC City 

Civic Center District; Tax Key No. 

794-9999-004. 
 

 

 

 

  

Alderman Dandrea moved and Commissioner Burckhardt  

seconded approval of the June 3, 2021 regular meeting 

minutes. On voice vote, all voted 'aye'. Motion carried (4-0-2).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Planning Manager Heath Eddy presented the request by 

Target Corporation (Store T-2388 Franklin) to allow for 

the placement of 40-50 shipping containers on the west 

side of the Target Store parking lot, for storage use during 

the remodel of the Target store, from July 12, 2021 to 

November 5, 2021, property located at 7800 South Lovers 

Lane Road, zoned CC City Civic Center District; Tax Key 

No. 794-9999-004. 
 

Alderman Dandrea moved and Commissioner Burckhardt   

seconded a motion to adopt a Resolution imposing  

conditions and restrictions for the approval of a Temporary  

Use to allow for the placement of shipping containers on  

the west side of the Target store parking lot, for storage use  

during the remodel of the target store located at 7800 South  

Lovers Lane Road, with the condition that the surrounding 

fence will not interfere with the Biggby Coffee drive-

through. On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’. Motion  

carried (4-0-2). 

 

 



Page 2                Plan Commission – Minutes 

                              June 17, 2021  

2.     PROPOSAL TO CHANGE 

THE PUBLIC NOTICES TO 

PROPERTY OWNERS 

AND NOTICES TO THE MEDIA 

WITH REGARD TO ZONING AND 

LAND DIVISION AND LAND USE 

MATTERS APPLICATIONS 

ITEMS PURSUANT TO THE 

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 

ORDINANCE, METHODS AND 

FORMATS PROCESS, TO 

IMPLEMENT A MORE 

ACCESSIBLE AND EFFICIENT 

PROCESS. 
 

 

Adjournment 

 

Planning Manager Heath Eddy presented a proposal to change 

the public notices to property owners and notices to the 

media with regard to zoning and land division and land use 

matters applications items pursuant to the unified 

development ordinance, methods and formats process, to 

implement a more accessible and efficient process. 
 

 

Alderman Dandrea moved and City Engineer Morrow  

seconded a motion to refer this item to staff for the second 

Plan Commission meeting of July and to return with two 

examples as well as wording for potential signs to be placed 

on site. On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’. Motion carried (4-0-2). 

 

 

 

Commissioner Hogan moved and Commissioner Burckhardt 

seconded a motion to adjourn the Plan Commission meeting of 

June 17, 2021 at 7:30 p.m. On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; 

motion carried. (4-0-2). 

  

 



   C I T Y  O F  F R A N K L I N     
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

 

Meeting of July 8, 2021 
 

Area Exception 
 

  

RECOMMENDATION:  City Development Staff recommends review of the Findings and 
Factors and Standards and a decision be made based upon the applicant’s recommended findings 
and consideration of any comments provided at the public hearing.   
 
 

Project Name: Rogosienski Area Exception 
Project Address: 3800 W Acre Avenue 
Applicant: Rogosienski, James A. and Sandra D.  
Property Owner: Rogosienski, James A. and Sandra D. 
Zoning: R-3 Suburban/Estate Single-Family Residence District  
Use of Surrounding Properties: Single-family residential zoned R-3.       
Applicant’s Action Requested: Approval of the proposed Area Exception  
              
 

INTRODUCTION: 
On May 13, 2021, the applicant submitted an Area Exception request to enlarge an existing 24’ x 
24’ garage to 24’ x 36’ with a resulting floor area of 864 square feet, while the maximum size for 
an accessory structure on this property is 720 square feet per Unified Development Ordinance 
(UDO) Section 15-3.0801.C. 
 
PROJECT ANALYSIS: 
Per Section 15-10.0209, Area Exceptions may be granted to increase the maximum size of an 
accessory structure by no more than 20%. Section 15-10.0209.G. of the Unified Development 
Ordinance (UDO) specifically lists Standards to be reviewed to grant or deny an Area Exception, 
which the Plan Commission and Board of Zoning and Building Appeals will use to consider the 
request. 
 
Maximum size for accessory structure calculation: 

• The property area is approximately 0.55 acres.  
• Per UDO Section 15-3.0801.C, the maximum accessory structure size is 720 sf (square 

feet). 
• The expanded garage would have an area of 864 sf, 24 x 36 feet. Note that the existing 

shed would be removed.  
• With approval of an Area Exception, the maximum accessory size may be increased up to 

20%, resulting in 864 sf.  Therefore, the applicant’s request falls within the allowable 
increase if the Area Exception is granted.  

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
City Development Staff recommends review of the Findings and Factors and Standards and a 
decision be made based upon the applicant’s recommended findings and consideration of any 
comments provided at the public hearing. 

Item C.1  



1  

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: June 8, 2021 

To: Rogosienski, James and Sandra 

From: Department of City Development 

RE: Area Exception request – 3800 W Acre Avenue 
 
 

Review comments are as follows for Area Exception application submitted on May 13, 2021: 

City Development Department comments 

The process to grant an Area Exception involves review and recommendation of the Plan 
Commission followed by approval by the Board of Zoning and Building Appeals.  

Per Section 15-10.0209, Area Exceptions may be granted to increase the maximum size of an 
accessory structure by no more than 20%. Section 15-10.0209.G. of the Unified Development 
Ordinance (UDO) specifically lists Standards to be reviewed to grant or deny an Area Exception, 
which the Plan Commission and Board of Zoning and Building Appeals will use to consider the 
request. 

Maximum size for accessory structure calculation: 

• The property area is approximately 0.55 acres.  
• Per UDO Section 15-3.0801.C, the maximum accessory structure size is 720 sf (square feet). 
• The expanded garage would have an area of 864 sf, 24 x 36 feet.  
• With approval of an Area Exception, the maximum accessory size may be increased up to 20%, 

resulting in 864 sf.  Therefore, your request falls within the allowable increase if the Area 
Exception is granted.  

 
Note: If this Area Exception in granted, you would to obtain a separate building permit from the 
Inspection Services Department prior to commencement of construction. 
 
Fire Department comments  

• No comments. 
 

Police Department comments  

• The PD has no comment regarding this request. 
 
 
 
 



Planning Department 
(414) 425-4024

3800 W. Acre Ave.
TKN 833 0065 000

This map shows the approximate relative location of property
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor.
This map is provided for informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriate for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.

R-3 

R-6 
C-1 

ACRE

AVE

36T
H

ST

N
2021 Aerial Photo

0 210 420105 Feet

Property

 



Planning Department 
(414) 425-4024

3800 W. Acre Ave.
TKN 833 0065 000

This map shows the approximate relative location of property
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor.
This map is provided for informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriate for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.

W

DR

ST
36

TH

S

W              ACRE AVE

W          MARY          ANN

ACRE

AVE

36T
H

ST

N
2021 Aerial Photo

0 210 420105 Feet

Property

 



















      C I T Y  O F  F R A N K L I N       
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

 
Meeting of July 8, 2021 

 
Site Plan amendment 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  City Development Staff recommends approval of the proposed site 
plan amendment for an accessory storage building to a child day care center upon property 
located at 7260 S. 76th Street, subject to the conditions of approval in the attached draft 
resolution.        

Project Name:  Ingenious Site Plan amendment for an accessory storage 

building 

Project Address: 7260 S. 76th Street 
Applicant: Christopher W. Colton 
Property owner: Guarding Your Investments, LLC 
Agent: Gerald J. Holasek 
Current Zoning: B-3 Community Business District 
2025 Comprehensive Master Plan Commercial  
Use of Surrounding Properties: Carter Grove residential condominium to the south, Old 

Orchard Shopping Center to the north, commercial and 
residential across S. 76th Street to the west and vacant 
property zoned B-3 to the east.  

Applicant Action Requested: Approval of Site Plan amendment. 
 

INTRODUCTION: 
Site Plan amendment to add a detached accessory building to a child care center. The proposed 
building would be located east of the existing parking lot and be used for storage. The floor area 
would be approximately 880 sf, 40 by 22 feet. A Special Use permit for the operation of this 
child day care was approved in 2015 per Resolution No. 2015-7140 (attached for reference). 
 
In 2017, a Zoning Compliance permit was granted to allow for a business name change from 
Guarding Your Angels, Inc. to Ingenious, Inc. 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND ANALYSIS: 
The proposed accessory building would have fiber cement lap siding (arbor mist color), white 
insulated garage doors facing the parking lot, white fiberglass door, vinyl sliding windows and 
gray metal roofing. It is noted that commercial accessory buildings are not limited in size like 
residential accessory structures per the Unified Development Ordinance. 
 

   Item D.1. 
 



The resulting net floor area ratio (NFAR) of this site would be 0.24 while the maximum NFAR 
in the B-3 zoning district is 0.57. The proposed building location is between the existing parking 
lot and the playground area, no natural resources have been identified in this area. 
 
Landscaping: 
According to the applicant, the resulting Landscape Surface Ratio (LSR) of the site would be 
approximately 73%, which complies with the B-3 General Business District minimum LSR of 
40% (0.40).  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
City Development Staff recommends approval of the proposed site plan amendment for an 
accessory storage building to a child day care center upon property located at 7260 S. 76th Street, 
subject to the conditions of approval in the attached draft resolution.        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



STATE OF WISCONSIN             CITY OF FRANKLIN               MILWAUKEE COUNTY 
             PLAN COMMISSION            [Draft 6-30-21] 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-____ 

 
A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE SITE PLAN FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 7260 

SOUTH 76TH STREET TO ALLOW FOR A DETACHED ACCESSORY BUILDING 
ADDITION TO INGENIOUS INC., A CHILD CARE FACILITY 

(TAX KEY NO. 756-9993-011)  
 (CHRISTOPHER W. COLTON, PRESIDENT OF INGENIOUS INC., APPLICANT) 

              
 
 WHEREAS, Christopher W. Colton, President of Ingenious Inc. having applied for an 
amendment to the site plan for the property located at 7260 South 76th Street, such Site Plan 
having been previously approved as part of a Special Use approval for Children’s Land of 
Learning, Inc., an educational child care center, by Resolution No. 90-3452, dated April 4, 
1990; and  
 
 WHEREAS, such proposed amendment proposes the addition of an approximately 
880 square foot (40 feet by 22 feet) detached accessory building to Ingenious Inc., a child 
care facility (proposed building would be located east of the existing parking lot and would 
be used for storage), and the Plan Commission having reviewed such proposal and having 
found same to be in compliance with and in furtherance of those express standards and 
purposes of a Site Plan review pursuant to Division 15-7.0100 of the Unified Development 
Ordinance. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Plan Commission of the City of 
Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Site Plan for Christopher W. Colton, President of Ingenious 
Inc., dated June 28, 2021, as submitted by Christopher W. Colton, President of Ingenious 
Inc., as described above, be and the same is hereby approved, subject to the following 
conditions: 
 

1. Christopher W. Colton, President of Ingenious Inc., successors and assigns and any 
developer of the Christopher W. Colton, President of Ingenious Inc. detached 
accessory building addition project shall pay to the City of Franklin the amount of all 
development compliance, inspection and review fees incurred by the City of Franklin, 
including fees of consults to the City of Franklin, for the Christopher W. Colton, 
President of Ingenious Inc. detached accessory building addition project, within 30 
days of invoice for same.  Any violation of this provision shall be a violation of the 
Unified Development Ordinance, and subject to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the 
Municipal Code, the general penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from 
time to time. 

2. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon Christopher W. Colton, President 
of Ingenious Inc. and the detached accessory building addition project for the  



CHRISTOPHER W. COLTON, PRESIDENT OF INGENIOUS, INC. - SITE PLAN 
AMENDMENT  
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-_____ 
Page 2 

 
property located at 7260 South 76th Street: (i) being in compliance with all applicable 
governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all 
other governmental approvals, permits, licenses and the like, required for and 
applicable to the project to be developed and as presented for this approval. 

3. The Christopher W. Colton, President of Ingenious Inc. detached accessory building 
addition project shall be developed in substantial compliance with the plans City file-
stamped June 28, 2021. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Plan Commission of the City of Franklin, 
Wisconsin, that the Christopher W. Colton, President of Ingenious Inc. detached accessory 
building addition as depicted upon the plans City file-stamped June 28, 2021, attached hereto 
and incorporated herein, shall be developed and constructed within one year from the date of 
adoption of this Resolution, or this Resolution and all rights and approvals granted hereunder 
shall be null and void, without any further action by the City of Franklin; and the Site Plan 
for the property located at 7260 South 76th Street, as previously approved, is amended 
accordingly. 
 
 Introduced at a regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of Franklin this 
_______ day of ____________________, 2021. 
 
 Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of 
Franklin this _______ day of ____________________, 2021. 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
       _________________________________  
       Stephen R. Olson, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________       
Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk 
 
AYES ______ NOES ______ ABSENT ______ 



Planning Department 
(414) 425-4024

7260 S. 76th Street
TKN: 756 9993 011

This map shows the approximate relative location of property
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor.
This map is provided for informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriate for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.

B-3 

PDD 

R-6 

PDD 

R-8 

76
TH

    
    

    
    

    
    

   S
T  

CARTER

BLVD

N
2021 Aerial Photo

0 120 24060 Feet

Property

 



Planning Department 
(414) 425-4024

7260 S. 76th Street
TKN: 756 9993 011

This map shows the approximate relative location of property
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor.
This map is provided for informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriate for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.

CARTER

CARTERCARTER

CT
H 

U

BLVD

76
TH

    
    

    
    

    
    

   S
T  

CARTER

BLVD

N
2021 Aerial Photo

0 120 24060 Feet

Property

 



1  

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: June 10, 2021 

To: Gerald J. Holasek 

From: Department of City Development. Régulo Martínez-Montilva, Principal Planner. 

RE: Application for Site Plan amendment, 7260 S. 76th Street. 
 
 

Please be advised that city staff has reviewed the above application received on May 24, 2021, for 
a commercial accessory building to a child day care center located at 7260 S 76th Street. 
Department comments are as follows: 

Department of City Development 

1. Please provide full legal name of property owner. 

2. In order to attest compliance with the B-3 Community Business District Development Standards of 
Unified Development Ordinance Table 15-3.0303 (attached), please add the following information 
to your site plan or project narrative: 

A. Landscape Surface Ratio (LSR) calculations, existing and proposed. LSR is defined as 
“the ratio derived by dividing the area of landscaped surface by the base site area”. The 
proposed LSR must be at least 0.40. 

B. Floor Area Ratio, Net (NFAR) calculations, existing and proposed. NFAR is defined as 
“an intensity measured as a ratio derived by dividing the total gross floor area of a building 
or structure by the net buildable site area”. The resulting NFAR cannot exceed 0.57. 

C. Setbacks. Add dimensions measured from the proposed building to the side property line 
(north), as well as to the rear property line (east). 

3. Please revise the zoning information of the site plan, this property is located in the B-3 zoning 
district not the R-3 district. 

4. Pursuant to Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Section 15-7.0103 “Applications for Site Plan 
Review” (attached), please add or revise: 

A. Revise the site plan scale, use a recognized engineering scale, for example 1 in. : 20 ft as 
noted in the survey. 

C. Add Architect and/or Engineer name, address and seal noted. 

5. Any outdoor lighting associated with the proposed building? If so, please provide a lighting plan 
containing the elements described in UDO Section 15-5-.0402.B (attached). 

6. Staff suggests to provide colored building elevations. It is recommended that the proposed exterior 
materials and colors match those of the existing principal building. 

 



2  

 

Engineering Department Comments 

7. No comments for the Site Plan Amendment. However, the following must be shown to the plat: 

• Proposed erosion control. 
• Show at least three offsets reference distance from the property line. 
• The proposed finished floor elevation. 
• The existing elevations at the proposed building corners. 
• The existing elevation at the south side property line adjacent to the south building corners. 
• Note: Please kindly consider having the latest survey of the site. 

Inspection Services Department Comments 

8. Inspection Services has no comments on the proposal at this time. 
Fire Department Comments 

9. No comments. 
Police Department Comments 

10. The PD has no comment regarding this request. 

























      C I T Y  O F  F R A N K L I N       
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

 
Meeting of July 8, 2021 

 

Certified Survey Map 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  City Development Staff recommends approval of this Certified Survey 
Map (CSM) application submitted by Boomtown, LLC, subject to the conditions in the draft 
resolution.   

Project Name:  Boomtown Certified Survey Map 
Project Location: 12000 W Loomis Road, approximately a quarter mile west 

of the intersection of Loomis Road and Ryan Road 
Property Owner: Boomtown, LLC 
Applicant: S.R. Mills. Boomtown, LLC 
Agent: Daniel Szczap. Bear Development, LLC 
Current Zoning:  R-8 Multiple-Family Residence District & C-1 

Conservancy District 
2025 Comprehensive Plan: Commercial, Residential-Multifamily and Areas of Natural 

Resources 
Applicant’s Action Requested: Recommendation of approval of the Certified Survey Map 
Planner: Régulo Martínez-Montilva, Principal Planner 

 
Introduction  
Certified Survey Map (CSM) application submitted on May 28, 2021, to reconfigure the three (3) 
following properties: 

• TKN 891 9993 000, 8.58 acres, 12000 W Loomis Rd, with access to Ryan Road. 
• TKN 891 9996 000, 6.68 acres, 0 W Loomis Rd. 
• TKN 891 9997 000, 3.54 acres, 12204 W Loomis Rd. 

 
Project Description and Analysis 
The purpose of this CSM is to create 2 lots: Lot 1 with 15.06 acres north of Loomis Rd and 
access to Ryan Road, and Lot 2 with 0.91 acre south of Loomis Rd and access to West Loomis 
Court. A Concept Review was presented before the Common Council on April 5, 2021, for the 
“Ryan Road Duplexes”, a two-family residential condominium development with 26 units on the 
area designated as Lot 1 in this CSM. 
 
It is worth noting that Lot 2 does not meet the minimum area required for multi-family 
developments in the R-8 zoning district of 1 acre. Therefore, Lot 2 will be limited to only 1 
single-family or two-family dwelling subject to special use approval and conservation easement 
recording (condition #6). 
 

Item D.2. 



 2 

It should also be noted that any future development on Lot 1 will require special use and site plan 
approval by the City as well as conservation and landscape bufferyard easements as indicated in 
conditions of approval #6 and #7. Further, additional information related to the site plan, 
landscaping, lighting, signage, storm water, grading, etc. will be required at that time.  
 
This site is adjacent to the 116th Street trail, it is likely that a portion of the Ryan Creek trail 
would cross this site to connect to the 116th Street trail, the exact location has not yet been 
determined. The provision of a restriction or easement to allow for the future trail will be part of 
the special use and site plan review. 
 
Recommendation  
Staff recommends approval of this Certified Survey Map subject to the conditions in the draft 
resolution. 
 
City Development sent a memorandum with review comments to the applicant on June 15. Some 
of the items have been addressed while others have not been fully addressed and are outlined in 
the attached resolution for consideration by the Plan Commission, specifically: 
 

• Condition #6, the conservation easement recording to be deferred to the time of 
development, prior to issuance of building or land disturbance permits. 
 
Staff recommends that the conservation easement be provided as part of, and recorded 
simultaneously with, the Certified Survey Map (CSM) as required by Section 15-7.0702P. 
of the UDO. However, staff acknowledges that the applicant is providing graphical 
delineation and coordinates of present wetland boundaries and associated buffers and 
setbacks (sheets 2-6). Young woodlands are indicated in the Natural Resource Protection 
Plan but not in the CSM. It is noted that Table 15-4.0100 of the UDO allows up to 50% 
impact of young woodlands for residential development. 

 
• Condition #7, the landscape bufferyard easement requirement to be deferred to the time 

of development, prior to issuance of building or land disturbance permits. 
 
Staff is not objecting to deferring this requirement because the landscape bufferyard strip 
is clearly indicated in the CSM, Sheet 3. 

 
• Condition #9, a rezoning to remove the C-1 zoning district is required prior to recording 

of this CSM. 
 



STATE OF WISCONSIN             CITY OF FRANKLIN               MILWAUKEE COUNTY 
                   [Draft 7-1-21] 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-_____ 
 

A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A 2 LOT CERTIFIED  
SURVEY MAP, BEING A PART OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 AND NORTHWEST  
1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 30, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE  

21 EAST, CITY OF FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN  
 (STEPHEN R. MILLS, PRESIDENT OF BEAR DEVELOPMENT, LLC, APPLICANT 

(BOOMTOWN, LLC, PROPERTY OWNER)) 
(AT 12000 WEST LOOMIS ROAD AND 12204 WEST LOOMIS ROAD) 

              
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, having received an application for 
approval of a certified survey map, such map being a part of the Southwest 1/4 and 
Northwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 30, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of 
Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, more specifically, of the properties located at 
12000 West Loomis Road and 12204 West Loomis Road (Tax Key No. 891-9993-000 (8.58 
acres) and 891-9997-000 (3.54 acres)) and Tax Key No. 891-9996-000, generally located 
between 12000 and 12204 West Loomis Road (6.68 acres), Stephen R. Mills, President of 
Bear Development, LLC, applicant, Boomtown, LLC, property owner; said certified survey 
map having been reviewed by the City Plan Commission and the Plan Commission having 
recommended approval thereof pursuant to certain conditions; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Common Council having reviewed such application and Plan 
Commission recommendation and the Common Council having determined that such 
proposed certified survey map is appropriate for approval pursuant to law upon certain 
conditions. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of 
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Certified Survey Map submitted by Stephen R. 
Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC, as described above, be and the same is hereby 
approved, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. That any and all objections made and corrections required by the City of Franklin, by 
Milwaukee County, and by any and all reviewing agencies, shall be satisfied and 
made by the applicant, prior to recording. 

 
2. That all land development and building construction permitted or resulting under this 

Resolution shall be subject to impact fees imposed pursuant to §92-9 of the Municipal 
Code or development fees imposed pursuant to §15-5.0110 of the Unified 
Development Ordinance, both such provisions being applicable to the development 
and building permitted or resulting hereunder as it occurs from time to time, as such 
Code and Ordinance provisions may be amended from time to time. 

 



STEPHEN R. MILLS, PRESIDENT OF BEAR DEVELOPMENT, LLC – CERTIFIED 
SURVEY MAP 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-_____ 
Page 2 

 
3. Each and any easement shown on the Certified Survey Map shall be the subject of 

separate written grant of easement instrument, in such form as provided within the 
City of Franklin Design Standards and Construction Specifications and such form 
and content as may otherwise be reasonably required by the City Engineer or 
designee to further and secure the purpose of the easement, and all being subject to 
the approval of the Common Council, prior to the recording of the Certified Survey 
Map. 

 
4. Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC, successors and assigns, and 

any developer of the Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC 2 lot 
certified survey map project, shall pay to the City of Franklin the amount of all 
development compliance, inspection and review fees incurred by the City of Franklin, 
including fees of consults to the City of Franklin, within 30 days of invoice for same.  
Any violation of this provision shall be a violation of the Unified Development 
Ordinance, and subject to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the Municipal Code, the 
general penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from time to time. 

 
5. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon Stephen R. Mills, President of 

Bear Development, LLC and the 2 lot certified survey map project for the properties 
located at 12000 West Loomis Road and 12204 West Loomis Road (Tax Key No. 
891-9993-000 (8.58 acres) and 891-9997-000 (3.54 acres)) and Tax Key No. 891-
9996-000, generally located between 12000 and 12204 West Loomis Road (6.68 
acres): (i) being in compliance with all applicable governmental laws, statutes, rules, 
codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other governmental approvals, 
permits, licenses and the like, required for and applicable to the project to be 
developed and as presented for this approval. 

6. The applicant shall add the following note on the face of the Certified Survey Map: 
‘Recording of conservation easements for protected natural resources present on lots 
1 and 2 are required prior to the issuance of building or land disturbance permits.’  

7. The applicant shall add the following note on the face of the Certified Survey Map: 
‘Recording of a landscape bufferyard easement and associated landscape plan for the 
area designated as “30′ landscape bufferyard easement” is required prior to the 
issuance of building or land disturbance permits on Lot 1. This requirement does not 
apply to Lot 2 due to the presence of young woodlands in such area as identified in 
the Natural Resource Protection Plan dated June 28, 2021.’  

8. The applicant shall add the following label to the Certified Survey Map as required by 
Section 15-5.0102.A of the Unified Development Ordinance: ‘Landscape Bufferyard  



STEPHEN R. MILLS, PRESIDENT OF BEAR DEVELOPMENT, LLC – CERTIFIED 
SURVEY MAP 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-_____ 
Page 3 
 

Easement: This strip is reserved for the planting of tress and shrubs; the building of 
structures hereon is prohibited.’ 

9. The applicant shall obtain approval of a rezoning from the Common Council to 
remove the existing C-1 Conservancy District zoning, prior to recording of the 
Certified Survey Map.  If said rezoning is approved, the applicant shall revise and 
record the Certified Survey Map according to City procedures and requirements. 

 
10. The technical corrections noted by the Engineering Department in memorandum 

dated June 15, 2021, and Milwaukee County Register of Deeds in letter dated May 
14, 2021, must be addressed prior to recording of this Certified Survey Map. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Certified Survey Map, certified by owner, 
Boomtown, LLC, be and the same is hereby rejected without final approval and without any 
further action of the Common Council, if any one, or more than one of the above conditions 
is or are not met and satisfied within 180 days from the date of adoption of this Resolution. 
 
 BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that upon the satisfaction of the above conditions 
within 180 days of the date of adoption of this Resolution, same constituting final approval, 
and pursuant to all applicable statutes and ordinances and lawful requirements and 
procedures for the recording of a certified survey map, the City Clerk is hereby directed to 
obtain the recording of the Certified Survey Map, certified by owner, Boomtown, LLC, with 
the Office of the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County. 

 
 Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this 
_______ day of ____________________, 2021. 
 
 Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of 
Franklin this _______ day of ____________________, 2021. 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 

       _________________________________  
       Stephen R. Olson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 

___________________________________       
Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk 
 

AYES ______ NOES ______ ABSENT ______ 



Planning Department 
(414) 425-4024

12000 & 12204 W. Loomis Rd.
TKN: 891 9993 000, 891 9996 000 & 891 9997 000

This map shows the approximate relative location of property
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor.
This map is provided for informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriate for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.

R-8 

R-3 

R-2 

M-1 

C-1 R-8 

C-1 

LOOMIS
RD

RYAN                           RD   

MONARCH DR

N
2021 Aerial Photo

0 460 920230 Feet

Property

 

PropertyProperties



Planning Department 
(414) 425-4024

12000 & 12204 W. Loomis Rd.
TKN: 891 9993 000, 891 9996 000 & 891 9997 000

This map shows the approximate relative location of property
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor.
This map is provided for informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriate for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.

W    CHICORY

W   LOOMIS    RD

W    L
OOMIS

W  LOOMIS CT.  

W    RYAN   RD

STH 36  /  U
SH 45

LOOMIS
RD

RYAN                           RD   

MONARCH DR

N
2021 Aerial Photo

0 460 920230 Feet

Property

 

PropertyProperties



1  

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: June 15, 2021 

 
To: Daniel Szczap, Bear Development, LLC 
 
From: Régulo Martínez-Montilva, Principal Planner 
 City of Franklin, Department of City Development 

 
RE: Comments and Recommendations for Certified Survey Map application,  
 12000 W Loomis Rd, Tax Key Nos. 891-9993-000, 891-9996-000 and 891-9997-000. 
  

 
 

Below are comments and recommendations for the Certified Survey Map application submitted by 
Boomtown, LLC and deemed complete for review on May 28, 2021.for properties bearing Tax Key Nos. 
891-9993-000, 891-9996-000 and 891-9997-000.   

Department of City Development comments 
1. Required information for Certified Survey Maps. Per Section 15-7.0702 of the Unified 

Development Ordinance (UDO), please show correctly on the face of the CSM, in addition to the 
information required by § 236.34 of the Wisconsin Statutes, the following: 

j. Owner, Subdivider, Land Surveyor. Name and address of the owner, Subdivider, and Land 
Surveyor. – Property owner must be labeled Boomtown, LLC.  

 
Bear Development: This has been addressed on the revised CSM submitted on 6/29/2021. 

2. Wetland delineation. The wetland delineation dated October 30, 2014, is no longer valid for the 
purpose of the UDO. “No wetland delineation shall be valid for any purpose required under this 
Ordinance after the expiration of five years from the date the delineation was performed” per UDO 
Section 15-4.0102.G. Please submit a current wetland re-delineation. 

Bear Development: Updated wetland delineation linework is shown on the revised CSM 
submitted on 6/29/2021. 

3. Conservation easement. The location of conservation easements shall be graphically indicated 
and clearly delineated and dimensioned on the face of the Certified Survey Map. The location and 
extent of conservation easements should be directly related to the "Natural Resource Protection 
Plan." All protected natural resources on the proposed lots must be made part of a Conservation 
Easement. This boundary must be shown on the CSM. Attached is the city’s conservation easement 
template. 

Bear Development:  Per our recent meeting (Heath, Regulo, and Dan) it was agreed that the 
Conservation Easement would be recorded as a separate document, at a later 
date and based on Site Intensity Calculations and allowed natural resource 
impact shown on the condominium Site Plan. The natural resource impact in 
question is related to the Young Woodlands shown on the NRPP. Bear 
Development would like to reserve the right for permitted impacts to Young 
Woodlands, per the UDO and accommodations for the City of Franklin 
proposed bike trail. Recording a Conservation Easement at this point would 



2  

impact the ability to develop the site or trail system. 

4. Landscape bufferyard easement. Pursuant to UDO § 15-5.0102, a landscape bufferyard easement 
with a minimum width of 30 feet is required along both sides of Loomis Rd (STH 36), excluding 
any areas required for utility easements or conservation. Landscape easements must be graphically 
indicated and clearly delineated on the face of the Certified Survey Map and recorded with a 
separate easement document. Attached is the city’s landscape bufferyard easement template. 

Bear Development: Per our recent meeting (Heath, Regulo, Dan) it was agreed that the 30’ Landscape 
Bufferyard Easements would be shown on the revised CSM on each side of Loomis 
Road.  

5. Landscape Plan. A landscape plan as described in UDO Division 15-7.0300 is required for the 
landscape bufferyard easement areas noted above. See landscape plan standards attached. 

Bear Development: Per our recent meeting (Heath, Regulo, Dan) it was agreed that the Landscape Plan 
on the north side of Loomis Road shall be submitted with the duplex condominium 
site plan. It was further agreed that a specific Landscape Plan is not needed on the 
south side of Loomis Road as the 30’ Landscape Bufferyard is existing natural 
vegetation, The revised CSM has been revised accordingly. 

6. An Isolated Natural Resource Area identified by the Southeastern Wisconsin Regional Planning 
Commission (SEWRPC) is present on site, this natural resource should be indicated in the Natural 
Resource Protection Plan. See green hatched area for reference: 
 

 
 
Bear Development: The revised CSM and NRPP identifies and notes the limits of the Isolated 

Natural Resource Area as identified by SEWRPC. 
 



3  

7. The Plan Commission approval certificate (Sheet 9 of 9) is not necessary, please remove it. The 
Common Council approval certificate must remain. 
 
Bear Development: The revised CSM, submitted on 6/29/2021 has been revised accordingly. 
 

8. Please add middle name initial to the Mayor’s name, it should read Stephen R. Olson. 
 
Bear Development: The revised CSM, submitted on 6/29/2021 has been revised accordingly. 

 
9. CSM review time frame. Pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes 236.34(1m)(f), the approval authority shall 

take action within 90 days of submittal unless the time is extended by agreement with the subdivider, 
therefore, the Common Council shall take action before August 26. If you are not able to address 
staff comments #1-8 timely for the provided meeting dates (7/8, 7/22 or 8/5 Plan Commission), you 
can extend the review time in writing.  
 
Bear Development: The applicant will work to meet the timelines as outlined and will cooperate 

with a review extension if required. 

10. C-1 zoning district. Staff recommends rezoning the existing C-1 Conservancy District portion of 
the site to R-8 Multiple-Family Residence District. The C-1 is a zoning district that is no longer 
utilized. Instead, the City protects natural resource features within conservation easements. A 
Rezoning Application is attached for your review. Please note that a public hearing is required at 
Plan Commission, prior to final review and approval by the Common Council. City Development 
staff informed you of this requirement during the Concept Review. 

Bear Development: The applicant will file appropriate zoning applications to eliminate the C-1 
Conservancy District.  

Police Department comments 
11. The PD has no comment regarding this request. 

Engineering Department comments 
12. See separate letter. 



City of Franklin 

Engineering Department 

 

 

 

 

Date: June 15, 2021 

Owner: Boomtown LLC 

Address: 12000 W Loomis Road & 12204 W Loomis Road 

 

Application Type: Certified Survey Map 

 

 

Comments: 

 

Must resolve all technical issues identified by Milwaukee County. Upon receipt of the comments 

from the County, the City comments, below, may be revised to reflect changes required by the 

County; 

 

• On page 2 of 9, show the N & E coordinates of the monuments. 

• On page 7 of 9, under description # 1, the 2nd line-bearing should be read North-West 

instead of South-East. 

• On page 7 of 9, under description # 1, the line-bearing for closing the loop must be 

changed from North-West to South-East. 

• On page 8 of 9, under the City of Franklin Common Council Approval, insert the 

sentence "and Accepted" after the sentence "Approved by". 

 

Must include the right of way in the legal description then dedicate it for public road purposes. 

May need to encompass the two parcels in one legal description. 

 

Thank you, 

 

 

Ronnie Asuncion 

Engineering Lead Tech 

Rasuncion@Franklinwi.gov 

(414) 425-7510 









































  City of Franklin 
  Department of City Development 
 
M E M O R A N D U M         
 
Date:  June 24, 2021 
 
To:  Mayor Steve Olson 
  City of Franklin Plan Commission 
  Scott Satula, Director, Department of Inspection Services 
 
From:  Heath Eddy, AICP, Planning Manager 
  Planning Department Staff 
 
Subject: Sign Code Revisions 

 
Planning Department staff have been working with the Department of Inspection Services to 
prepare a changeover of the administration of the current Sign Code (Chapter 210 of Municipal 
Code) from Inspection Services to the Planning Department. As part of this transition, staff has 
prepared an interim Sign Code amendment to remove and/or replace certain existing provisions 
in order to effect the change now, while the UDO Rewrite consultant prepares an eventual 
replacement sign code.  
 
As such, the proposed interim amendment is designed to address only the most pressing needs to 
effect a fairly seamless change between the two departments. To wit, staff is recommending the 
following proposed amendments to Chapter 210. 
 
Reorient the Sign Code 
Specifically, except with respect to maintenance complaints or technical building code issues, 
Chapter 210 needs to be redirected so that the Planning Department leads on the sign code. Staff 
recommends amendments from “Building Inspector” or “Inspections Department” to “Planning 
Department.” 
 
Eliminate Architectural Review Board Review 
The ARB functions as a “rubber stamp” on sign permits. They act merely as an administrative 
check-off, and serve no important function. Inspection Services staff actually proposed this 
change (though Planning staff were similarly aligned).  
 
This would require a change to Section 210-3C to delete two subsections and then renumbering 
the remaining sections, and a revision to Section 210-3D (Permit Fees) to remove the ARB 
review fee. 
 
Minor Interim Changes 
Staff further proposes a few clean-up changes, as follows: 
 



  City of Franklin 
  Department of City Development 
 

1. The current code requires a $500 fee for Master Sign Programs but $150 for amendments 
to MSPs. Staff recommends raising that to $250 consistent with other provisions that 
amendments are half of the original fee. 

2. Adding a basic provision to require fees for Temporary Signs in addition to Mobile 
Signs. 

3. Clarify a provision in Section 210-4A (Permissible areas for signs) that states that signs 
and billboards are permitted in nonresidential districts and any electrical service is 
regulated under Chapter 119 (Electrical Standards). Currently, this section incorrectly 
infers that the electrical code defines nonresidential districts, which it doesn’t. 

4. Clarify that the maximum sign area of a monument sign is the total sign area of all sign 
faces of a multi-sided sign, in Section 210-4C(5)(c ). This isn’t stated outright currently. 

5. Eliminate Common Council review of reviews of “development identification signs” that 
are proposed to be located over or above a private entry drive. It’s a review sign-off that 
is unnecessary and should be left to the Plan Commission.  

 
Staff has attached a draft Ordinance for Plan Commission review. We have already vetted this 
draft amendment with Inspection Services.  
 



STATE OF WISCONSIN              CITY OF FRANKLIN              MILWAUKEE COUNTY 
              Draft 06/17/2021 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 210 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE TO 
REVISE CERTAIN MINOR ELEMENTS OF THE EXISTING SIGN CODE 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
 

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission having reviewed the Municipal Code as it pertains 
to the requirements for sign permits and administrative provision, and having recommended 
to the Common Council to amend the Municipal Code to incorporate various minor 
amendments to Chapter 210 of the Municipal Code. 
 

WHEREAS, the Common Council having considered the recommendation and 
having determined same to be reasonable and in the public interest.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Franklin, 
Wisconsin, do ordain as follows: 
 
SECTION 1:  §210-3C, Issuance of permits, of the Municipal Code of the City of 

Franklin, Wisconsin, is hereby amended as follows: delete existing 
subsections (2) and (3), renumber (4) as (2), and amend new subpart (2) 
to read as follows: “Upon his or her determination that the proposed 
structure conforms with the ordinances of the City, Planning 
Department staff shall issue the permit. If the work authorized under 
the sign permit has not been completed within one year after the date of 
issuance, the permit shall become null and void.” 

 
SECTION 2. §210-3D, Permit fees, of the Municipal Code of the City of Franklin, 

Wisconsin, is hereby amended as follows: 
 

A. Revise the fee under subsection (1)(a)[3] from $150 to $250; 
B. Change the title of subsection (2)(b) to read “Mobile and 

Temporary signs”; 
C. Delete subsection (2)(c ) and renumber subsequent subsections.  

 
SECTION 3: §210-4A, Permissible areas for signs, of the Municipal Code of the 

City of Franklin, Wisconsin, is hereby amended as follows: amend 
subsection (1) to read as follows: “Other than residential districts. In 
nonresidential districts, signs and billboards shall be permitted and any 
electrical service shall be regulated under by Chapter 118, Electrical 
Standards.” 

 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2021-____ 
Page 2  
 
SECTION 4: §210-4C, Standards for the design and erection of signs and billboards, 

of the Municipal Code of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, is hereby 
amended as follows: amend subsection (5)(c ) to read as follows:  

 
“Area. The area of a monument sign shall not exceed 120 square feet 
total sign face which shall include the aggregate sign face area of a 
multi-sided sign.” 
 

SECTION 5: §210-5, Maintenance and removal of signs, of the Municipal Code of 
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, is hereby amended as follows: amend 
subsections A(1) and A(2) to read as follows:  

 
“(1) If the Planning Manager or, at his or her request, the Building 
Inspector shall find that any sign or other advertising structure 
regulated herein is unsafe or insecure or is a menace to the public or 
has been constructed or erected or is being maintained in violation of 
the provisions of this Chapter, he or she shall give written notice to the 
licensee thereof. If the licensee fails to remove or alter the structure so 
as to comply with the standards herein set forth within 10 days after 
such notice, such sign or other advertising structure may be removed or 
altered to comply by the Planning Department or Building Inspector at 
the expense of the licensee or owner of the property upon which it is 
located. The Planning Department shall refuse to issue a license to any 
licensee or owner who refuses to pay costs so assessed.  

 
(2) The Planning Manager or, at his or her request, the Building 
Inspector may cause any sign or other advertising structure which is, in 
his or her opinion, an immediate peril to persons or property to be 
removed summarily and without notice.”  

 
SECTION 6: §210-9, Master sign program, of the Municipal Code of the City of 

Franklin, Wisconsin, is hereby amended as follows: delete subsection 
G(9) and renumber subsequent subsections. 

 
SECTION 7: Chapter 210 of the Municipal Code of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, 

is hereby amended as follows: replace all references to “Building 
Inspector” and “Inspections Department” with “Planning Department”, 
which shall apply to the following subsections: 210-3A(1); 210-3B; 
210-3C(1) and (2); 210-3D(2)(c ) both Notes; 210-3E; 210-5B(1); 210-
5C(4); 210-9B; and 210-9C. 

 
 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-____ 
Page 3  
 
SECTION 8:  The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable.  Should any 

term or provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain 
in full force and effect. 

 
SECTION 9: All ordinances and parts of ordinances in contravention to this 

ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 10: This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its 

passage and publication. 
 
 Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this 
______ day of __________________, 2021, by Alderman ___________________________. 
 

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of 
Franklin this ______ day of _______________________, 2021. 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
             
       Stephen R. Olson, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
       
Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk 
 
AYES ______ NOES ______  ABSENT ______    
 
 
 


	01 2021-0708 Plan Commission Agenda
	FRANKLIN CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS
	9229 W. LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

	02 2021-0617 PC Minutes - Draft
	03 Item C.1. Rogosienski Area Exception
	01 2021-07-08 PC Staff Report - Rogosienski AE
	02 2021-06-08- Review Comments - Rogosienski AE
	03 Planning Map_Combined
	Planning Map_Aerial
	Planning Map_Locator

	04 standards
	05 application
	06 survey

	04 Item D.1. Ingenious Site Plan Amend
	01 2021-07-08 PC Report - Ingenious Site Plan amendment
	02 Ingenious Inc. accessory bldg. addition SP A 6-30-21
	03 Planning Map_Combined
	Planning_Ariel.pdf
	Planning Map_Locator.pdf

	04 2021-06-10 Staff Comments - Ingenious Site Plan amendment
	05 RES2015-7140 SU Guarding Your Angels
	06 application set PC
	07 site plan 6-28-21

	05 Item D.2. Bear Dev. Boomtown CSM
	01 07-08-21 PC Report Boomtown CSM
	02 Bear Development, LLC duplexes (approx. 12000 W. Loomis Rd.) 2 Lot CSM 7-1-21 with cond 6-10
	03 Planning Map_Combined
	Planning Map_Aerial
	Planning Map_Locator

	04 06-15-21 Staff comments - Boomtown CSM - BearDevResponse
	Department of City Development comments
	Police Department comments
	Engineering Department comments

	05 ENG Comments - 12000 W Loomis CSM
	06 CSM Milw Co comment letter
	07 CSM-Signed Application
	08 CSM-Cover Letter-Project Summary
	09 CSM Boomtown 6-28-21
	10 NRPP Boomtown 6-28-21
	11 Site Intensity Calcs - Lot 1
	12 Site Intensity Calcs - Lot 2

	06 Item D.3. City of Franklin Sign Code Revisions
	01 2021-07-08 PC Review of Sign Code
	02 2021-06-17 Sign Code interim amendment draft


